

City of Deltona

2345 Providence Blvd. Deltona. FL 32725

Minutes

City Commission

Monday, May 17, 2021

6:30 PM

Deltona Commission Chambers

A. In an effort to reduce the possibility of exposure of residents to the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) we have limited public seating inside the Commission Chambers and are practicing social distancing with the City Commission, staff and residents.

1. CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL - CITY CLERK:

Present: 9 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez

Commissioner King

Commissioner McCool

Commissioner Ramos

Commissioner Sosa

Vice Mayor Bradford

Mayor Herzberg

Acting City Manager

City Attorney

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE TO THE FLAG:

A. <u>Invocation Presented by Mayor Herzberg.</u>

Mayor Herzberg introduced Nick Pizza with Pizza Ministries who led everyone in the invocation and Commissioner King led everyone in the pledge to the flag.

The National Anthem was sung by David Castro an 5th Grader at Trinity School.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES & AGENDA:

A. <u>Approval of minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting of January 19, 2021, as presented. - Joyce Raftery, City Clerk (386) 878-8502.</u>

Motion by Vice Mayor Bradford, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to

approve the minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting of January 19, 2021, as presented. The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 7 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

5. PRESENTATIONS/AWARDS/REPORTS:

A. <u>Proclamation - Florida's Emancipation Day-May 20, 2021.</u>

The Mayor and Commission presented a proclamation to Pastor Shine in recognition of the actualization of the Official 1863 Emancipation Proclamation by proclaiming May 20, 2021 as Florida's Emancipation Day.

B. Proclamation - Emergency Medical Services Week- May 16-21, 2021.

The Mayor and Commission presented a proclamation to Fire Chief Snyder honoring the emergency medical services teams are ready to provide lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

C. Proclamation - National Police Week

The Mayor and Commission presented a proclamation to Captain Moreno with the Volusia Sheriff's Office honoring National Police Week which occurs every May to publicly salute the services of law enforcement in the community and is a time to reflect on the sacrifices these heroes make every day.

D. <u>FY2019/2020 Annual Audit Presentation: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2020 - Mari Leisen, Finance Department (386) 878-8553.</u>

Strategic Goal: Fiscal Issues - Maintain current fiscal stability, maximize alternative funding sources and promote an effective system of checks and balances.

Tim Westgate, Auditor Partner, and Laurie Walker, In Charge Auditor, with Purvis Gray, gave a presented the City's audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended September 30, 2020.

6. ORDINANCES AND PUBLIC HEARINGS:

None.

7. OLD BUSINESS:

A. Request for approval of the compensation study and implementation of

pay adjustments for the rank and file employees. - John A. Peters, III, P.E., Acting City Manager (386) 878-8858.

Strategic Goals: Fiscal Issues

Acting City Manager Peters gave a brief explanation of the item.

The Commission and Acting City Manager Peters discussed vacancies, the Fire Union adjustments, timeline, and lump sum payouts.

Motion by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to authorize the Acting City Manager to implement the salary adjustments as outlined in the attached spreadsheet retroactive to 1 October 2020, and further authorize the Acting City Manager to correct any scrivener's errors.

Mayor Herzberg opened and closed the public comments as there were none.

The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 7 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

8. NEW BUSINESS:

A. Request for approval of the revision of current City of Deltona Incentives

Program - Jerry Mayes, Economic Development & Ecological Tourism

Sustainability Manager (386) 878-8619.

Strategic Goal: Economic Development

Economic Development & Ecological Tourism Sustainability Manager Jerry Mayes gave a brief explanation of the item.

The Commission, Acting City Manager and Mr. Mayes discussed the amount of incentives, criteria, impact fees, high density development, incentive caps, staff negotiates and Commission approves, level of expectation, concept, Amazon, grandfathering, apartments, multi-residential, other cities' incentives, and non-owner occupied.

Motion by Commissioner Ramos, seconded by Vice Mayor Bradford, to approve and adopt the revised economic development incentive program known as the Deltona Incentives Program. This motion entails the replacing all previous City incentive plans. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

Mayor Herzberg opened the public comment.

Elbert Bryant, Deltona, spoke about being outspoken, Amazon, incentives, property taxes, being impressed, negotiations, Commission approval required and to vote yes.

Mayor Herzberg closed the public comments.

The motion carried by the following vote:

- For: 7 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- B. Consideration of request from Tanya Russell for a reduction of fine from \$20,000.00 assessed pursuant to Special Magistrate Case DEL-17-134.

Strategic Goal:

Acting City Manager Peters and Code Enforcement Supervisor Richard Lovett gave brief explanations of the item.

The Commission, Code Enforcement Supervisor, Acting City Manager, City Attorney and the property owner discussed Special Magistrate and Commission meetings, waiving fines, reducing the fine, future issues, condition of the property, red tape, improvement done, Special Magistrate minutes, Special Magistrate contract and outline of events.

Motion by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, to grant the request of Tanya Russell depending on the outcome of the Acting City Manager's research with the Special Magistrate's contract for a reduction of fine regarding Case No. DEL-17-134 for the property located at 313 Fisher Drive, Deltona, Florida to the sum of \$500.00. The fine is to be paid within 30 days from today, May 17, 2021 or the fine will revert back to the original amount. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like. The motion died for lack of a second.

Motion by Commissioner Sosa, seconded by Vice Mayor Bradford, to grant the request of Tanya Russell for a reduction of fine regarding Case No. DEL-17-134 for the property located at 313 Fisher Drive, Deltona, Florida to the sum of \$0.00. The fine is to be paid within 30 days from today, May 17, 2021 or the fine will revert back to the original amount. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

Mayor Herzberg opened the public comments.

Elbert Bryant, Deltona, spoke about fines, correcting issues, Special Magistrate minutes, Special Magistrate authority, the record, should have a fine, setting a precedent, why fine is reduced, and Special Magistrate contract.

Resident 1776, spoke about doing research, law, Special Magistrate vs. board, Special Magistrates, length of contract, Florida Constitution, due process, recordings, residents' rights, Florida Statutes, and consequences.

Richard Bellach, Deltona, spoke about lawyer, asking a question, being removed from chambers, motion made, pay day, and not having words.

Mayor Herzberg closed the public comments.

The Commission and Code Enforcement Supervisor discussed the Special Magistrate clerk, reduction of fine, correcting violations, and past violations.

The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 7 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

Mayor Herzberg requested no other waiver of fees are to come before the Commission until the Special Magistrate situation is explained and a legal opinion is brought forth.

C. Request for approval of Resolution No. 2021-23 and Execution of State
Revolving Loan Agreement for the Alexander Avenue Reclaimed Water
Augmentation Project (also known as Lake Monroe Project Phase 4B). Steve Danskine, Public Works, 386-878-8998.

Strategic Goal: Infrastructure.

Acting City Manager Peters gave a brief explanation of the item.

Motion by Vice Mayor Bradford, seconded by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, to approve Resolution No. 2021-23 and authorize the Acting City Manager to execute the loan agreement and any other documents required by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection to complete the loan process for State Revolving Funds. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like. The motion carried by the following vote:

Mayor Herzberg opened and closed the public comments as there were none.

The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 7 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

Resolution No. 2021-23 was adopted at 7:58 p.m.

D. Request for approval to purchase time and attendance software, at the cost of \$63,235.00 to be utilized citywide. - John A. Peters, III, PE, Acting City Manager (386) 878-8852.

Strategic Goal: Fiscal Issues

Acting City Manager Peters gave a brief explanation of the item.

Motion by Vice Mayor Bradford, seconded by Commissioner Sosa, to approve the purchase time and attendance software at a cost of \$63,235.00 to be utilized citywide. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like. The motion carried by the following vote:

Mayor Herzberg opened and closed the public comments as there were none.

The motion carried by the following vote:

- For: 7 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- E. Request for approval to replace three (3) 2012 John Deere Mowers
 (SW-1204, SW-1205, SW-1515), at a total cost of \$65,909.28 (\$21,319.76 each)
 for the Stormwater Division. Steven Danskine, PE, Public Works
 Department (386) 878-8998.

Strategic Goal: Infrastructure maintenance

Acting City Manager Peters gave a brief explanation of the item.

Motion by Commissioner Sosa, seconded by Vice Mayor Bradford, to grant approval replace three (3) 2012 John Deere Mowers (SW-1204, SW-1205, SW-1515), at a total cost of \$65,909.28 (\$21,319.76 each) for the Stormwater Division. The Acting City Manager has the authority to

make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like. The motion carried by the following vote:

Mayor Herzberg opened the public comments.

Brandy White, Deltona, spoke about tabling the item, another item on the agenda, and the need for mowers.

Mayor Herzberg closed the public comments.

Acting City Manager Peters explained there is in-house mowing done by staff and outside mowing done by a contracted employee.

The motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 7 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner McCool, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- F. Request for approval of Resolution No. 2021-24, Legislation in Progress:

 Moratorium for Residential or Mixed Use Planned Unit Development

 (Section 110-319 of the Land Development Code) rezoning request

 involving residential detached dwelling unit projects Ron A. Paradise,

 Director, Planning and Development Services (386) 878-8610.

<u>Strategic Goal: Economic Development - Create more diversified and high-quality housing opportunities.</u>

Acting City Manager Peters stated that given the recent law suit, as was learned on Saturday at the advice of the City Attorney, it is becoming very difficult for us to have discussions with regards to this matter, changing the code and the like without potentially adversely impacting the law suit so he recommends tabling this matter.

Motion by Commissioner Ramos, seconded by Commissioner King, to table Item 8-F. The motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 5 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- Against: 2 Commissioner McCool, and Commissioner Sosa
- G. Consideration of appointment or re-appointment of seven (7) members and four (4) alternate members to the Economic Development Advisory Board.

 Joyce Raftery, City Clerk (386) 878-8502

Strategic Goal: Internal and External Communication

Mayor Herzberg gave a brief explanation of the item.

Acting City Manager Peters and Mr. Mayes gave a brief history on the number of meetings that were not able to take place due to the lack of a quorum.

The Commission, Acting City Manager Peters and Mr. Mayes discussed scheduling, lack of member feedback, the board not working, recording absences, the Planning & Zoning Board, changing the by-laws, tabling the item, qualified members, attendance, polling the member, applicants, and Sunshine Law.

Motion by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to table Item 8-G.

Amended motion by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to table Item 8-G to time certain June 7, 2021.

Mayor Herzberg opened the public comments.

Richard Bellach, Deltona, spoke about wives and husbands.

Mayor Herzberg closed the public comments.

Signal with Commissioner McCool who was attending remotely was lost.

The amended motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 6 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- H. Consideration of appointment or re-appointment of seven (7) members to the William S. Harvey Deltona Scholarship Advisory Board. Joyce Raftery, City Clerk (386) 878-8502.

Strategic Goal: Internal and External Communication.

Mayor Herzberg gave a brief explanation of the item.

Motion by Commissioner Ramos, seconded by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, to re-appoint the current seven members to the William S. Harvey Deltona Scholarship Advisory Board. Amended motion by Commissioner Ramos, seconded by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, to re-appoint all seven members to the William S. Harvey Deltona Scholarship Advisory Board: Lori Burbank, Walter Dawson, Sandra Dillard, Steve Lightbody, Ruben Medina, Harry Meeks and Cristina Raimundo. The motion carried by the following vote:

Amendment to the amended motion by Commissioner Ramos, seconded by Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, with term expirations of May 23, 2023. The amended motion carried by the following vote:

Mayor Herzberg opened and closed the public comments as there were none.

The amended motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 6 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- I. Request approval of a Settlement Agreement with the Deltona Professional Fire Fighters, IAFF Local 2913 on behalf of Stan Dally. John Peters, III, PE, Acting City Manager (386) 878-8850.

Strategic Goal: Administrative

Acting City Manager Peters gave a brief explanation of the item.

Motion by Vice Mayor Bradford, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to approve the Settlement Agreement with the Deltona Professional Fire Fighters, IAFF Local 2913 on behalf of Stan Dally. Upon approval of this item, the Acting City Manager is authorized to make corrections to scrivener's errors. The motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 4 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner Ramos, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- **Against:** 2 Commissioner King, and Commissioner Sosa

Mayor Herzberg opened the public comments.

Brandy White, Deltona, spoke about lack of questions, certifications, paying for mistakes, Former City Manager Shang, accountability, and filing a grievance.

Mayor Herzberg closed the public comments.

Acting City Manager Peters addressed Ms. White's concerns.

The motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 6 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- 9. PUBLIC FORUM: Citizen comments are limited to issues and concerns not on the agenda and comments on items listed on the agenda will take place after discussion of each item. Please be courteous and respectful of the views of others. Members of the City Commission shall not enter into discussion or respond to individuals' comments during the public forum other than to give directions or to ask for clarification. Personal attacks on Commission members, City staff or members of the public are not allowed, and will be ruled out of order by the Mayor.

Richard Bellach, Deltona, spoke about RPUD, law suits, public records request, women of Deltona, voting against residents, gateways, Mayor's lien, sewage, water, roads, drugs, fines, 189 homes, getting paid, and his opinion.

Jennifer Chasteen, Deltona, spoke about VSO, Strategic Planning meeting, frame work, what the City has and does not have, Amphitheater, The Center, spending money, Council on Aging (COA), parks, community pool, impact fees, trees, eco-system, infrastructure and sustaining in the long haul.

Mike Putkowski, Deltona, spoke about a stray dog, Animal Control, scan/chipping, not removing the dog, re-homing a dog, issuing tickets, social media, and the buck stops with the Commission.

Tammy, spoke about Patty Mullens and Caitlyn Foster, metal detector, trauma, painful experience, removing the metal detector, other metal detectors, and conceal carriers.

Resident 1776, Deltona, spoke about trauma, without prejudice, Florida Constitution, right to assemble, addressing the public, elected officials, and bound to rules.

Yorelis Navas, Deltona, spoke about an email she sent, Title II grievance, needing parking accommodations, her family's needs, parking issues, mulch, cats, paperwork and accommodation form.

Elbert Bryan, Deltona, spoke about Facebook, roads, adopt-a-road program, signage, Wal-Mart, Publix, Halifax Health, non-profits, The Center, community vs. event center and listening to the residents.

Brandy White, Deltona, spoke about medal detector, costs, deterred items, legal issues, Special Magistrate, firefighter agreement, certifications, wasteful spending and tightening belts.

10. COMMENTS ON CONSENT ITEMS: Citizen comments are limited to issues and concerns on the Consent Agenda item(s). Please complete a public participation slip and indicate in the subject line the issue you wish to address. Members of the City Commission shall not enter into discussion or respond to individuals' comments during the public forum other than to give directions or to ask for clarification. Please be courteous and respectful of the views of others. Personal attacks on Commission members, City staff or members of the public are not allowed, and will be ruled out of order by the Mayor.

None.

11. CONSENT AGENDA: The Consent Agenda contains items that have been determined to be routine and non-controversial. If discussion is desired by any member of the City Commission, that item must be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. All other matters included under the Consent Agenda will be approved by one motion. Citizens with concerns should address those concerns by filling out a public participation slip and giving it to the Deputy City Clerk prior to Consent Agenda items being pulled.

Commissioner Ramos left the meeting at 9:05 p.m. and returned at 9:06 p.m.

Motion by Vice Mayor Bradford, seconded by Commissioner Ramos, to approve Consent Agenda Items 11-A through 11-F. The motion carried by the following vote:

- **For:** 6 Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg
- A. Request for approval of fiber optic cable expansion to Fire Logistics and Fire Fighter's Memorial Park Robert Cordero, Information Technology Services (386) 878-8807.

Strategic Goal: Internal and External Communication

Approved by Consent - to approve the fiber optic expansion to Fire Logistics and Fire Fighter's Memorial Park with Traffic Control Division in the amount of \$92,131.52. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

B. Request for approval to piggyback agreement with Life Scan Wellness

Centers for annual physicals - Fire Chief Snyder, Fire Department (386)

575-6902.

Strategic Goal: Public Safety

Approved by Consent - to approve and piggyback Life Extension Clinics Inc. contract with City of Jacksonville to provide firefighter physical and medical examinations for firefighters through the term of the contract at a total cost of \$53,500.00. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

C. Request for approval to piggyback on the Toho Water District's contract with USSI, LLC of Venice, FL to provide an Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) Study of the gravity sewer collection system as outlined in the contract. - Steven Danskine, Public Works/Deltona Water (386) 878-8998.

Strategic Goals: Public Safety

Approved by Consent - to recommend approval to piggyback on the Toho Water District's contract with USSI, LLC to provide an Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) Study of the gravity sewer collection system as outlined in the contract. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

D. Request for approval of the Agreement with the Volusia County Property
Appraiser for the Utilization of the Uniform Method of Collection of the
Non-Ad Valorem Assessments. The implementation of Amendment 10 has
made the Property Appraiser and the Tax Collector constitutional officers,
necessitating the revision of Non-Ad Valorem Assessment (NAVA). - John
A. Peters, III, P.E., City Manager (386) 878-8858.

Strategic Goal: Fiscal Issues

Approved by Consent - to approve and sign the Agreement with the Volusia County Property Appraiser for the Utilization of the Uniform Method of Collection of Non-Ad Valorem Assessments. The Acting City Manage has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

E. Request for approval to award Bid# PW 2021-04, Lawn and Landscaping
Services to Brightview Landscape to provide Citywide Lawn and
Landscaping Services for the various Stormwater, Water and Wastewater
Plants and Parks and Recreation locations. - Steven Danskine, Public
Works/Deltona Water (386) 878-8998.

Strategic Goal: Infrastructure Maintenance

Approved by Consent - to approve the award of Bid# PW 2021-04 to Brightview Landscape to provide Lawn and Landscaping Services in the amount of \$258,400.00 and as approved by the City Commission up to the approved budget amounts for each fiscal year. Award shall be for an initial period of three (3) years with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year terms upon mutual agreement of both parties. The Acting City Manager has the authority to make corrections of scrivener's errors and the like.

F. Request for approval of the Task Authorization with Mead & Hunt, Inc. for the engineering, design and permitting for the replacement of the stormwater pump station adjacent to Ft Smith Blvd. as outlined in the contract. - Steven Danskine, Public Works/Deltona Water (386) 878-8998.

Strategic Goals: Public Safety

Approved by Consent - to recommend approval of the Task
Authorization with Mead & Hunt, Inc. for the engineering, design and
permitting for the replacement of the stormwater pump station adjacent
to Ft Smith Blvd. as outlined in the contract, and upon approval
authorize the Acting City Manager to execute the Task Authorization
and authorize the Acting City Manager to correct any scrivener's errors.

12. CITY COMMISSION SPECIAL REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

Vice Mayor Bradford asked if staff has discussed whether or not to have fireworks for July 4th and Acting City Manager Peters replied the Parks & Recreation Department are putting together a 4th of July fireworks display which is below \$25,000 which is his signing authority. He will send an email out to the Commission with the exact date.

Vice Mayor Bradford requested to make sure that the issue which happened to the resident when going through the metal detector does not happen again and to have clear policies and procedures in place. Acting City Manager Peters replied it has been turned over to Captain Moreno with the Volusia County Sheriff's Department for an investigation with appropriate action in regards to that event and will discuss alternative means for the future.

Commissioner King left the meeting at 9:11 p.m. and returned at 9:14 p.m.

Vice Mayor Bradford asked if the Animal Control incident with Mr. Putkowski has been addressed and what will be done to prevent that from happening in the future. Acting City Manager Peters replied he met with Mr. Putkowski, his daughter and Mr. O'Grady. The issue will be investigated, appropriate action will be taken, but based on what Mr. Putkowski stated it was not a terminable offense and he left the meeting thinking Mr. Putkowski understood that. The situation was handled by Mr. O'Grady and the Supervisory

staff so he was surprised when the Commission received the series of emails and that he came tonight.

Vice Mayor Bradford requested to see what has to be done to get the City put on the list for the Adopt-A-Road program.

Commissioner Sosa requested to take away the metal detector in an effort to encourage the public to come to Commission meetings.

Motion by Commissioner Sosa, seconded by Commissioner King, that effective immediately that the metal detector be taken away.

Amended motion by Commissioner Sosa, seconded by Commissioner King, to have this put on the next agenda to have the metal detector removed. The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 6 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Commissioner Sosa, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

13. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS:

None.

14. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:

Acting City Manager Peters requested the Commission authorize him to direct the Finance Department to set aside \$200,000 from the City's unrestricted reserve and put it into an account for the upcoming litigation over Hickory Lakes Preserve.

Motion by Commissioner King, seconded by Vice Mayor Bradford, to authorize the Acting City Manager to have the Finance Department set aside \$200,000 from the City's unrestricted reserves into an account for the litigation regarding the 189-lot subdivision in the Osteen area so that the City has it properly funded. The motion carried by the following vote:

For: 5 - Commissioner Avila-Vazquez, Commissioner King, Commissioner Ramos, Vice Mayor Bradford, and Mayor Herzberg

Against: 1 - Commissioner Sosa

15. CITY COMMISSION COMMENTS:

Commissioner King reminded everyone that the American Legion Auxiliary will be distributing Poppy's on May 28th and 29th at Winn Dixie shopping center at Providence

Blvd and Normandy Blvd. and that there will not be a Memorial Day celebration at Deltona Memorial Gardens this year and instead Visa and The American Legion in Deltona will be doing a Memorial Day Ceremony on May 31st at the Veteran's Memorial Park and Museum at 1:00 p.m.

Vice Mayor Bradford complimented the intelligence of the students from the Cambridge Institute competition at Deltona High that day and how bright they are and the projects the students put together were awesome and she is excited for it. She reminded everyone that graduation and holidays are coming and to be extra safe and cautious on the road.

16. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m.	
Heidi K. Herzberg, MAYOR	
ATTEST:	
Joyce Raftery, CMC, MMC, CITY CLERK	